
PLANNING PANEL
AGENDA

Venue: The Bainbridge Room, The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, 
Whitehaven. CA28 7SJ 

Date: Wednesday, 16th October, 2019
Time: 2.00 pm
Contact Officer: Clive Willoughby                Tel: 01946 598328

1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items: 

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 18 September 2019 1 - 4

4. Schedule of Applications 

a) Application 4/19/2194/0F1 - 46 Santon Way, Seascale 5 - 16 

Application for alteration and extension (including a rear linked 
conservatory) to install a pre-fabricated mobile home extension for 
elderly relative and retrospective permission for extension of domestic 
garden into open space.

b) Application 4/19/2329/0F1 - The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, 
Whitehaven

17 - 22 

Application for the installation of new louvre vent panels to the exterior 
of the building on western and eastern elevations to serve new 
mechanical supply and extract ventilation.

5. Schedule of Delegated Decisions 23 - 32

6. Planning Appeal Decision 33 - 38

7. Street Naming and Numbering 39 - 42

8. Development Management Performance Monitoring 43 - 44

9. Date and Time of Next Meeting: 

The next meeting of the Planning Panel will be held on Wednesday 13 
November 2019 at 2:00pm in The Bainbridge Room, The Copeland Centre, 
Catherine Street, Whitehaven.

Public Document Pack



Membership: Councillors Joan Hully (Chair), Doug Wilson (Deputy Chair), Jackie Bowman, 
Graham Calvin, Tom Higgins, Charles Maudling, Ged McGrath, Michael McVeigh, 
Graham Minshaw, Brian O'Kane and Russell Studholme

Contacts: Direct Dial: 01946 598328
E-mail: clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk



PLANNING PANEL

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON WEDNESDAY, 18 SEPTEMBER 2019

Present: Councillors Joan Hully Jackie Bowman, Graham Calvin, Charles Maudling, 
Michael McVeigh, Graham Minshaw, Brian O'Kane and Russell Studholme.

Officers: Nick Hayhurst (Planning Development Manager), Clive Willoughby (Democratic 
Services Officer), Rose Blaney (Electoral Services Officer) and Andrew Clarke (Communications 
and Engagement Manager).

Also Present: Graeme Innes (Cumbria County Council Highways Dept).

PP 19/39 Apologies for absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Tom Higgins, Ged McGrath and Doug 
Wilson.

PP 19/40 Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items: 

Councillor Brian O’Kane declared a non-pecuniary Interest in the Delegated Decisions due to 
being a Whitehaven Town Councillor and a member of Seascale Golf Club.

Councillor Charles Maudling declared a non-pecuniary Interest in the Delegated Decisions due 
to being a Whitehaven Town Councillor.

Councillor Jackie Bowman declared a non-pecuniary Interest due to knowing former Officers 
sitting in the public seats.

PP 19/41 Minutes of the meeting held on 24 July 2019 

RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on 24 July 2019 be signed by the Chair as a 
correct record.

PP 19/42 Planning Panel Site Visit 

A site visit for the Planning Panel was undertaken during the morning on Wednesday 18 
September 2019 to view application site 4/19/2287/0O1 (Land at Harras Moor). This was 
attended by Planning Panel members Councillors Joan Hully, Michael McVeigh, Graham 
Minshaw, Russell Studholme and Graham Calvin.

Councillor E Dinsdale representing Whitehaven Town Council also attended.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



PP 19/43 Schedule of Applications 

The planning application was taken at this point of the meeting.

PP 19/44 Application 4/19/2287/0O1 - Land at Harras Moor 

During discussion of this item Mr M Gracey, Ms L Cruickshank and Mr Trevaskis spoke in 
objection to the application.

The Applicant’s Agent, Mr P Shannon, then exercised his right to respond.

RESOLVED – that on a vote of 2 in favour, 6 against and 0 abstentions, the application be 
Deferred as Members were minded to refuse the application against the Planning Officer’s 
recommendation.

PP 19/45 Schedule of Delegated Decisions 

RESOLVED – that the Schedule of Delegated Decisions from 1 July 2019 to 
6 September 2019 be noted.

PP 19/46 Street Naming and Numbering - New Residential Development - Land at Edgehill 
Park, Whitehaven. 

Consideration was given to the naming of a street for the proposed new residential 
development on the Land at Edgehill Park, Whitehaven.

RESOLVED – that the street name Ellen Drive be adopted for this development and all the 
relevant bodies be notified.

PP 19/47 Planning Appeal Decision 

Members were informed of the outcome of a recent Appeal decision in respect of a site on 
land at High Trees, Lamplugh, CA14 4SH.

RESOLVED – that the decision to DISMISS the appeal be noted in the context of the Local Plan 
Policies and also in relation to performance monitoring.

Page 2



PP 19/48 Request for modification of Section 106 Agreement for Residential Development on 
Land at Millfields, Lamplugh. 

Consideration was given to a request to modify a Section 106 Agreement relating to a 
Residential Development on Land at Millfields, Lamplugh.

RESOLVED – that the proposed modification of the Section 106 Agreement to enable 
development to commence on the site and also to ensure that the requirement to deliver a 
village hall as part of the scheme is maintained be agreed in accordance with the submitted 
request.

PP 19/49 Date and Time of Next Meeting: 

The next meeting of the Planning Panel will be held on Wednesday 16 October 2019 at 
2:00pm in The Bainbridge Room, The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, Whitehaven.

The Meeting closed at 3.55 pm 

Chair

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 5

Agenda Item 4a



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17

Agenda Item 4b



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



PP 16 10 19

            

DELEGATED DECISIONS

Lead Officer: Nick Hayhurst – Planning Development Manager

To inform Members of the Delegated Decisions made in the period 9 September 2019 to 
7 October 2019.   

Recommendation: That the List of Delegated Decisions be noted. 

Resource Implications: Nil

1. The Planning Development Manager has delegated authority to determine Planning 
Applications as stated in Chapter 10 of the Council’s Constitution.

2. It is a requirement that the Planning Development Manager report details of all 
applications determined under delegated powers to the Planning Panel.

3. Attached is a list of Delegated Decisions made in the period 9 September 2019 to 7 
October 2019. 
.   

Contact Officer: Nick Hayhurst – Planning Development Manager

Appendix: List of Delegated Decisions

Background Papers:

  

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



PP 16 10 19

PLANNING APPEAL DECISION

Lead Officer: Nick Hayhurst – Planning Development Manager

To inform Members of a recent appeal decision in respect of an application to fell two 
sycamore and one ash tree at 1 Fleatham Gardens, High House Road, St Bees, Cumbria.

Recommendation: That the decision be noted in the context of the Council’s Local Plan 

Policies and also in relation to performance monitoring.

Resource Implications: Nil

1.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.1 Permission was refused under delegated powers to undertake work to trees protected by a 

Tree Preservation Order on 2nd November 2018 (reference 4/18/2415/TPO) for the 

following reason:-

“The removal of these trees will have a significant detrimental impact upon the amenity of 

the area and further erode the wooded setting of Fleatham Gardens and the trees still 

merit protection with the TPO. The application has not provided supporting evidence to 

justify the reasons for removal and whilst some pruning work is considered to be 

appropriate, removal of these mature trees and replacement with small growing 

ornamentals is excessive.”

1.2  An appeal which was lodged against this decision has now been DISMISSED. 

1.3 In considering this case the Inspector noted that the main issue raised is the effect on the 

character and appearance of the surrounding area.

1.4 Harm to the Character and Amenity of the Surrounding Area 

The Inspector noted that the site was located in a generally verdant setting which is part of 

a new development at Fleatham Gardens. He noted that a number of trees were removed 

to make way for the new development but those which remain, including the subject trees, 

contributed to the generally wooded setting of the area.  The trees are clearly visible from 

Fleatham Gardens itself and from Fleatham Croft to the north.  From this direction the 

trees are on a raised area of land above 5 Fleatham Croft.
Page 33

Agenda Item 6



The trees are part of a mixed broad-leafed group which, when viewed from both 

directions, makes a significant contribution to the character of the area. He considered that 

their loss, close to the centre of the settlement, would erode the wooded setting of the 

properties and would be harmful to the amenity of the area.

1.5 Justification for Felling

From the site visit the Inspector noted that, although some works are clearly necessary, the 

general condition of the trees is reasonable. The appellant’s main justification was that the 

trees posed a danger to the property and also overshadowed the garden area. Although, 

he considered the justification for the felling, he noted that deciding to live in an area with 

mature trees carries with it some benefits and some disadvantages, and this does not 

represent a sound reason for seeking to remove protected trees which make a contribution 

to the amenity of the area. He suggested proper management and reduction works to the 

trees would overcome issues of lighting and shade on the appellant’s property and its 

occupiers. 

1.6 Overall Conclusion

Based on the reasons outlined above and having had regard for all other matters raised, 

the Inspector has concluded that the appeal should not succeed, as the loss of the trees 

would result in unacceptable harm to amenity. 

  

Contact Officer: Christie Burns – Planning Officer

Background Papers: A copy of the Inspector’s decision letter is appended.

Page 34



  

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 13 August 2019 

by Phillip J G Ware  BSc DipTP MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State  

Decision date: 13 September 2019 

 

Appeal Ref: APP/TPO/20923/7110 

1 Fleatham Gardens, High House Road, St Bees, Cumbria 

• The appeal is made under regulation 19 of the Town and Country Planning (Tree 
Preservation) (England) Regulations 2012 against a refusal to grant consent to 
undertake work to trees protected by a Tree Preservation Order. 

• The appeal is made by Mr Craig Connor against the decision of Copeland Borough 
Council. 

• The application Ref: 4/18/2415/TPO, dated 20 September 2018, was refused by notice 
dated 2 November 2018. 

• The work proposed is felling of two sycamores and one ash tree. 
• The relevant Tree Preservation Order (TPO) is the Copeland Borough Council Tree 

Preservation Order no.1:2004 (Land at Fleatham House, St Bees, Cumbria), which was 

confirmed on 30 March 2005. 
 

 

Procedural matter  

1. The precise location of the trees in question in relation to the TPO plan was not 

clearly identified in the appeal papers – although it was clear on site.  By 

emails dated 19 August 2019 the parties confirmed the location of the subject 

trees within Group W3 of the TPO.   

Decision  

2. The appeal is dismissed. 

Main issue 

3. The main issue in this appeal is the effect of the proposed felling on the 

character and appearance of the surrounding area and whether the reasons 

given for the felling of the trees justify that course of action. 

Reasons  

4. The appeal site is located in a generally verdant setting which is part of a new 

development at Fleatham Gardens.  It appears that a number of trees were 

removed to make way for the new development, but those which remain, 
including the subject trees, contribute to the generally wooded setting of the 

area.  They are clearly visible from Fleatham Gardens itself and from Fleatham 

Croft to the north.  From this direction the trees are on a raised area of land 
above 5 Fleatham Croft. 

5. The trees are part of a mixed broad-leafed group which, viewed from both 

directions, makes a significant contribution to the character of the area.  Their 

Page 35

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/TPO/20923/7110 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          2 

loss, close to the centre of the settlement, would erode the wooded setting of 

the properties and would be harmful to the area. 

6. I now turn to the reasons put forward for the proposed felling.   

7. From the submitted evidence and my site visit it is clear to me that, although 

some works are clearly necessary, the general condition of the trees is 

reasonable.  The appellant has made reference to a 2006 tree survey and, 

although I have not been provided with the full survey, I have taken account of 
the extracts which the appellant has provided.  The trees, even in their present 

condition without maintenance works, still make a significant contribution to 

the area. 

8. Turning to the specifics of the individual trees, the sycamore referenced as 

T592 has obviously suffered from some crown decline, which appears not to 
have been addressed.  Despite evidence of a new crown forming at a lower 

level, which would be enhanced by substantial crown reduction.  This would 

also assist with the overall health of the tree and any adverse impact on the 
surrounding area.  There is a suggestion that consent was previously given for 

this tree to be felled, but no evidence of this has been provided and I am 

unable to take this matter into account. 

9. The sycamore referenced as T589 exhibits some crown asymmetry due to the 

proximity of other trees.  There is no professional evidence to suggest that the 
tree is unhealthy. 

10. Finally the ash referenced as T590 exhibits some storm damage, but this could 

be addressed by crown reduction.  There is a suggestion of the presence of 

Honey Fungus, although it is not clear if this relates to T590.  In any event, the 

Council’s recent arboricultural report stated that the use of a sounding hammer 
and probe found no evidence of decay, and this has not been contested by the 

appellant.  

11. I appreciate the appellant’s concern regarding danger to the property and its 

occupiers beneath the trees.  This is a concern naturally shared by the 

residents of the affected building.  But there is no evidence of any proper 
management of the subject trees and such work could significantly reduce this 

issue. 

12. I appreciate that the trees shade part of the appellant’s property and garden, 

and that of neighbouring properties.  This could be reduced by maintenance 

and reduction works to the trees.  In any event, deciding to live in an area with 
mature trees carries with it some benefits and some disadvantages, and this 

does not represent a sound reason for seeking to remove protected trees which 

make a contribution to the amenity of the area. 

13. I have read about the medical condition put forward by the appellant which is a 

material consideration.  As I understand it this condition causes a heightened 
sense of responsibility.  In this case this manifests itself in relation to the 

responsibility for the adjoining occupiers.  However this responsibility could be 

discharged by proper management of the trees. 

14. The appellant has stated that he would be prepared to plant rowan trees close 

to the driveway.  However these would take some years to mature and, even 
at full maturity, could be expected to reach only half the height of an ash or 

Page 36

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


Appeal Decision APP/TPO/20923/7110 
 

 
https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate                          3 

sycamore.  The contribution that this replacement planting would make, even 

some years down the line, would not compensate for the lost trees. 

15. With any application to fell protected trees a balancing exercise needs to be 

carried out.  The need for the proposed felling must be weighed against the 

resultant loss to the amenity of the area.  The matters put forward by the 
appellant are generally not uncommon and, whilst they create inconvenience, 

they go hand-in-hand with living in an area which is partly defined by mature 

trees and which provides an attractive area in which to live. 

16. Having considered all other matters raised I find that the loss of the trees 

would result in unacceptable harm to amenity.  Taking into account all of the 
foregoing matters, both individually and in combination, the justification has 

been provided to fell the tree and the appeal should be dismissed.  

 
P. J. G. Ware 

 
Inspector 

 

 

Page 37

https://www.gov.uk/planning-inspectorate


This page is intentionally left blank



STREET NAMING AND NUMBERING

NEW RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT – LAND BEHIND WESTLAKES HOTEL, 
GOSFORTH, SEASCALE

Lead Officer: Chris Hoban, Strategic Planning Manager

Recommendation: That the street name The Loudons to be adopted for this 
development and all the relevant bodies be notified.

Resources Implications:  Cost of providing street nameplates if the request is approved.

1.0 Supporting Information

1.1. This site is a Residential Development located on Land Behind Westlakes Hotel, 
Gosforth, Seascale. 

1.2. The developer wishes to have a new street name adopted for this development.

1.3. The Developer suggested the name The Loudons for the Street Name after the last 
doctor in the Village.

1.4. Gosforth Parish Council have been consulted and Members will be updated at the 
meeting.

CONTACT OFFICER: Graeme Singleton, Technical Officer

BACKGROUND PAPERS: Street Naming file 

To ask members to decide on the street name for the proposed new 
residential development on the LAND BEHIND WESTLAKES HOTEL, 
GOSFORTH, SEASCALE

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



PP 16 10 19

            Item    

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE MONITORING

Lead Officer: Nick Hayhurst – Planning Development Manager

To inform Members of Development Management Performance for the second quarter of 
2019/20 (01st July 2019 – 30th September 2019) against National Performance Indicators   

Recommendation: That the report be noted 

Resource Implications: Nil

1.0 SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Speed of Determination of Planning Applications – the following results were achieved:-

2nd Quarter
(July – Sept)

Cumulative
(April – Sept)

PI 157 (a)
Major planning applications dealt within 13 weeks 
or agreed extension of time
Target is 65%

100%
(1 out of 1)

100%
(3 out of 3)

PI 157 (b) and P157 (c)
Minor and Other planning applications dealt within 
8 weeks or agreed extension of time
Target is 80%

100%
(82 out of 82)

98.8%
(168 out of 170)

  
 Other Indicators for 2nd Quarter (July – September 2019)
   
 Percentage of Applications determined under delegated powers = 98.8% 

 Percentage of planning applications approved = 100% 

 Percentage of Planning Appeals Allowed = Nil (3 out of 3 dismissed)

Contact Officer: Nick Hayhurst – Planning and Place Manager

Background Papers: Planning Statistics (PS1 and PS2 Returns) 

Page 43

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 18 September 2019
	4a Application 4/19/2194/0F1 - 46 Santon Way, Seascale
	4b Application 4/19/2329/0F1 - The Copeland Centre, Catherine Street, Whitehaven
	5 Schedule of Delegated Decisions
	Delegated Decisions

	6 Planning Appeal Decision
	Appeal Decision TPO

	7 Street Naming and Numbering
	Street Naming & Numbering - The Loudons, Gosforth, Seascale, Cumbria

	8 Development Management Performance Monitoring

